
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING- PLANNING ROOM 
101 N HALAGUENO 

THURSDAY, APRIL 18,2013 AT 4:00PM 

1. ROLL CALL OF YOTING MEMBERS AND DETERMINATION OF A OUORVM. 

Voting Members Present: 

Voting Members Absent: 

Ex-Officio Members Present: 

Ex-Officio Members Absent: 

Danny York, 
Joanna Sieberg 
Adon Rodriguez 

Robert Defer 
Ray Anaya 

None 

Jon Tully 
Dale Janway 

Chairman 
Member 
Member 

Member 
Member 

City Administrator 
Mayor 

Others Present: Rick Jackson Cemetery Manager 
Patsy Jackson-Christopher CRC Director 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 

Monica Harris 
Tai Etcheverry 
Jerry Stanley 
Mark W alterscheid 
Harold Finical 
Roberta Arias 

Finance Director 
Internal Auditor 
Citizen 
Garden Mart, Inc 
West Funeral Home 
Citizen 

The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez and seconded by Ms. Sieberg. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, Sieberg, York. 
Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. The motion passed. 

3. APPROYAL OF MINUTES FOR JANUARY 17. 2013: 
With the correction of Joanna Sieberg present at the last meeting and Ray Anaya was listed as present and absent, 
Mr. Anaya was also present. The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez and seconded by Ms. Sieberg. Voting Yes -
Rodriguez, Sieberg, York. Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. The motion passed. 

4. GENERAL OPERATING CASH REPORTS; 
Mr. York asked about the Otis Water User Co-op. Ms. Harris stated we do have water service there and they 
charge us an assessment each year and we also have to pay a monthly water bill like everyone else does. The 
motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez and seconded by Ms. Sieberg. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, Sieberg, York. 
Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. 

5. MONTHLY CEMETERY FINANCIAL BEPQRTS; 
Ms. Harris reviewed the 3rd quarter financial report ending March 31, 2013. To date we have collected 74% of our 
revenues $132,835.40 of the budget which is about where we should be. The operating expenses we have only spent 
57%, our capital outlay we are at 20%. 



Jerry Stanley asked if we got any assistance from the Legislature. Ms. Harris stated no. 
The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez to approve and seconded by Ms. Sieberg. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, 
Sieberg, York. Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. 

6. MONTHLY CEMETERY REPORTS; 
The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez and seconded by Ms. Sieberg to approve the reports. 

7. CEMETERY MAINTENANCE REPORT; 
Mr. Jackson said most of the complaints he had are shrunken graves, but there doesn't seem to be a lot. Mr. 
Walterscheid stated that without rain you won't have a lot of shrunken graves, if it rains a Jot you will get a lot if it 
doesn't the ground settles. 

The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez to approve and seconded by Ms. Sieberg. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, 
Sieberg, York. Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. 

8. CEMETERY MANAGERS REPORT; 
Mr. Jackson reported on the projects at Sunset Gardens. He said the fence should be going out to bid soon. The 
welders are through with the gates they should be painting them. He already purchased the concrete for the gates 
and hopefully within the next couple of weeks the gates will be installed. We will be getting a contractor to finish 
up the Mausoleum, they will come in and do everything that needs to be done. That will include an ADA restroom, 
painting, taking care of the walls with water damage. 

Mr. Stanley asked if that included the niches. He asked what plans the city had for the niches. 

Mr. Jackson stated that does include the niches. Mr. Jackson said they were either going to build a new one or put 
a columbarium in there. 

Mr. Stanley stated something needed to be done about the doors. He asked if someone could put some door closures 
because the other day they were wide open. Mr. Stanley also mentioned that one of the doors was shattered. 
Mr. Rodriguez asked about getting a columbarium. He asked about the contractor coming and building the wall 
straight, working on the restrooms and remove the cabinets that will give them more room to work with. 

Mr. Jackson said the cost of two Colurnbariurns' at Carlsbad Cemetery was around $85,000. 

Mr. Rodriguez said it seems like we are doing the work backwards. The first time we went in there and re-did the 
floors. We need to get the cabinets repaired then the ADA restrooms. Anytime a contractor goes out there we need 
to make sure they cover the floor to protect it. 

Mr. Finical suggested moving what's in the current niche to the Carlsbad Cemetery while Sunset Gardens is under 
construction. 

Mr. Jackson reported that Mrs. Jackson-Christopher has given the okay to precede working on the house at the 
Carlsbad Cemetery for new offices. The facility maintenance crew has started painting. Mr. Jackson is working on 
getting a new air-conditioning unit and tile for the floors. 

Mr. Walterscheid spoke about Gopher control. For some reason there is a big a problem with Gophers this year. 
Right now he has it under control. 



.. 

A. REVIEW AND CONSIDER MEETING TIME. DATE. AND LOCATION. 
Mr. Jackson asked for a motion to consider the meeting time, date and location of the Cemetery 

Advisory Board quarterly meetings. Mr. Rodriguez motioned to approve the current meeting times, 

date and location. Ms. Sieberg seconded the motion. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, York, Sieberg. Voting 

No- None. Absent- Defer, Anaya. 

B. REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROvAL OF THE REQUEST TO CREATE A vETERANS 
CEMETERY AT SVNSET GARDENS CEMETERY CQNTINGENT UPON FUNDING 
RAISED AND OPERATING RULES AND REGULATIONS APPROVED FOLLOWING 
FEDERAL STANDABDS FOR VETEBANS CEMEIERIES. 
Mr. Jackson handed out a map with primarily costs. Mr. Rodriguez said the corner of where Fiesta 

turns into Wood Street, this is where the city asked us to consider. 

Mr. Stanley asked if anyone has done a study or an estimate of how many veterans wanted to be buried there. 

Mr. Rodriguez said there were about 2200 spaces available. Mr. Rodriguez said he has spoken with all the state 

representatives and they said if it's a Class A Cemetery they will all support it and go after the funds to help support 

a veterans' cemetery in this area. He stated that the city and an architect gave an estimate of one million dollars. He 

spoke about raising funds to build the veterans' cemetery, asking for local donations. As the money comes in they 

will be able to return the money to the city. 

Ms. Harris asked if the city was going to build it and then get reimbursed, or are they waiting until all the funds are 

raised and then will build it. Mr. Rodriguez said they are hoping to raise all the funds. 

Ms. Sieberg asked if family members could be buried there as well. Mr. Rodriguez said yes. 

Ms. Sieberg motioned to approve, Mr. Rodriguez seconded. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, Sieberg, York. Voting No

None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. 

C. REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROvAL OF BEVISIONS OF CEMETERY RULES AND 
REGULATIONS. 
Mr. Jackson handed out the current rules. He stated these rules aren't very clear. So he made a few 

revisions to clarify. Ms. Sieberg asked if there were any problems with people putting the solar lights 

on the graves. Mr. Jackson said yes, we are. They are starting to put them on the grass. 

Mr. York mentioned that a problem has been brought up in babyland. Mr. Walterscheid and his guys cleaned 

up the area. In doing so, some of the items have been removed. I don't think this board was aware, but there is a 

city employee, Josh Asbury, that was given approval to take care of that area. Mr. York said it is unclear who 

authorized that whether it was this board, the city board or who approved it. 

Mr. York stated that the board needed to look at the rules and regulations and consider if they need to be the same 

for baby land. But we do need to have some regulations in regards to the toys at baby land. 

Ms. Roberta Arias spoke about her daughter that goes out there every other day; she said they clean their area up. 

But the workers go out there and are picking things up and breaking them. She said they shouldn't do that. 

Mr. York stated that the workers are very careful. They try to safeguard and store the items that way if the family 

wants to come pick it up they can. The concern is having different rules for babyland that we do for the normal 

cemetery. We need to make the decision if we are going to have different rules, are we going to follow the ones we 

have today. We need to decide how we're going to maintain babyland. 



Mr. Finical mentioned that the city's regulations have always been a monument made by a monument company, 
installed by a permit issued by the city by the company, nothing else has ever been allowed. Santa Catrina has in the 
past allowed homemade monuments, and sometimes that's all they can do add a little concrete and scratch the name 
in it. 

Mrs. Jackson-Christopher suggested setting a date for cleanup in babyland. So every month the families will know 
to go and pick up their personal items prior to the cleanup date. 
Item was tabled until next meeting. The board will meet at the Carlsbad Cemetery on May 2 at 4:00pm. Mr. 
Rodriguez motioned to table item until next meeting. Ms. Sieberg seconded. Voting Yes - Rodriguez, Sieberg, 
York. Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer 

9. ADJOURNMENT: 
The motion was made by Mr. Rodriguez and seconded by Ms. Sieberg to adjourn. Voting Yes- Rodriguez, Sieberg, 
York. Voting No- None. Absent- Anaya, Defer. Meeting was adjourned at 5:26pm. 

Date 

5-"1-13 
Date 


